1953

State of Utah v. Edgar Ronald Penderville : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The defendant was arraigned in the District Court before the Honorable A. H. Ellett on the 6th day of December, 1952, at which time he entered a plea of not guilty. The case was set for trial eleven days later, to-wit, on December 17, 1952, at 10:00 A.M. (R. 7). On

the 15th day of December, 1952, defendant notified his attorney, Joseph P. McCarthy, that he did not want him to proceed with the defense of his case and that he was discharged from any further legal service in connection therewith. That the reason for said action was because defendant was satisfied that said attorney had not properly prepared his defense, notwithstanding he had ample time to do so and defendant had paid his requested fee and expenses of \$1500.00. Thereupon defendant wrote a letter to the Honorable A. H. Ellett, judge of the Third Judicial District Court informing him of his action in discharging his attorney. Said letter was delivered to the judge of said court before 10:00 A.M. on the 16th day of December, 1952. That a copy of said letter is as follows: (R. 57-58)

“Honorable A. H. Ellett, Judge
of the Third District Court of
Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah

“Dear Sir:

This morning I considered it necessary to my welfare to summarily discharge my attorney Joseph P. McCarthy together with any assistants he has seen fit to record as associated with my case.

In my opinion Mr. McCarthy has been abysmally negligent and derelict in his obligations relative to my best interests and in the so-called preparation of my defense. He impresses me at this point as being completely devoid of professional know-how and completely lacking any sense of his deep legal and moral responsibilities. There are other factors involved, not monetary, which

have influenced my decision but which I do not feel free to discuss at this time.

In view of the foregoing I beg indulgence of the court and request a postponement of my trial until such time as I am able to engage competent legal counsel whom I feel will not only represent me but defend me.

Respectfully yours,
s/ E. R. Penderville"

On the 16th day of December, 1952, defendant was called before the Honorable A. H. Ellett in his chambers at approximately 9:50 A.M. and in the presence of Miriam E. Parker, the reporter of the above entitled court, he engaged in a conversation with the Honorable A. H. Ellett, which conversation has been duly reported in the official transcript of the case from page 242 to 252 inclusive (R. 316-325), as follows:

"THE COURT: Mr. Penderville, I had a letter from you this morning that gave me some little concern about your attorney. What is it that you have against him? I thought he was doing you an excellent job. I don't know anything about it.

MR. PENDERVILLE: The whole thing, he's been giving me a lot of concern for a long time. Primarily, I wanted this thing to go to trial a couple or three months ago. I didn't want to wait, but the situation as it exists now is approximately this: Mr. McCarthy has had in his hand information for a period of in excess of four months which he did nothing about. I felt that it was very definitely in my favor and something that should be prepared for the trial.

THE COURT: Are you having reference to the viewing of a chair in—

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir.

THE COURT: He was in yesterday working on that matter.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir. No sir, it wasn't the chair, although that is one of the matters that was brought to Mr. McCarthy's attention at least two months ago, and apparently he didn't do anything about it until yesterday.

THE COURT: Well, the thing that irks me a little bit is I am all set to try this case. I think there has been a deliberate stall of trying to put it over, and I wasn't going to be a party to that and don't propose to be now. I propose to try this case.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Well, it is no stall on my part, Your Honor. As I stated at the beginning, as far as I was concerned, I wanted this thing over with. I don't enjoy being over in that county jail one moment. It's an entirely new experience to me, and as I have already stated, I don't like any part of it; but one thing and another, first the preliminary was postponed, and then this was postponed, and that was postponed, and Mr. McCarthy's wife was having a baby.

THE COURT: Now, Mr. McCarthy is ready to try this tomorrow, I am ready, the district attorney is ready, and the jurors are ready, and you come in with this monkey wrench to stop the machinery of court, and I'm not happy about that.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Your Honor, I know that Mr. McCarthy is not ready to try this case. In my opinion an attorney trying a case, particularly a case of this magnitude, should be prepared

for any eventuality, and I am thoroughly convinced that Mr. McCarthy is not.

THE COURT: How do you know what he is going to do, how he is going to direct this trial?

MR. PENDERVILLE: Because we have discussed it together last night.

THE COURT: You are not law trained, are you?

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever had a case in court, criminal case in court before involving yourself?

MR. PENDERVILLE: The only thing that I have ever been involved in is a military court-martial.

THE COURT: So you wouldn't be in a very good position to pass on his qualifications and on what he's planned for this thing.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir, but I know from certain witnesses that are to be present for the State that Mr. McCarthy does not have information at his hand. He has also been in a position to get the necessary information for the past four months. I have urged him repeatedly to get it. Some of it he attempted to get a week ago Sunday by long distance phone calls that he could have got four months ago for the use of a three-cent stamp, but he didn't check that until he found he was going to have to go to trial eleven days after I entered my first plea.

THE COURT: Of course, you took time enough entering that plea. You took about three weeks to do that.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Well, I didn't—that was his doings. I don't know. Last night I asked

him if he had checked three potential witnesses for me here in Salt Lake City. I have been begging him to check these people for months. Up until last night he hadn't contacted a single one of them, not a single one.

THE COURT: Well, I am going to try this case tomorrow. You fired your attorney at a mighty inopportune time.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Well, I don't know about that. The only thing I can do is plead not guilty, and that's that.

THE COURT: Your plea is in. You have a plea of not guilty, and you have a jury coming in to ascertain the facts, and you have had plenty of time to make this decision heretofore.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Well, I have given Mr. McCarthy this past week to whip this thing in order, and he has not whipped it in order.

THE COURT: That is your opinion that he hasn't.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Yes, as I stated in my letter, that is my opinion.

THE COURT: Of course, you are not in a very good position it seems to me from your training and experience to know whether he is giving you a good defense or not. You chose him. He wasn't appointed by the court for you.

MR. PENDERVILLE: That's right.

THE COURT: He was the attorney you chose in the beginning.

MR. PENDERVILLE: That's right, I did. I knew no attorneys. Mr. McCarthy is the first one that I talked to. I was emotionally upset at the time, completely distraught. I had had two

convulsions over in the county jail the day before. I was desperate enough that I would have hired anyone, and everybody over in the county jail knows how I have been trying to get Mr. McCarthy to do these things.

THE COURT: Have you talked to Mr. McCarthy about this letter?

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir. I told him last night that I was very much afraid that we had come to the end of the line. He called Doctor Anderson last night and so stated that he was afraid that he was through.

THE COURT: Well, I will tell you what I think about you. I think you are just deliberately trying to get this case to go over.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir, I'm not. I have done just the opposite. I personally have been trying to get it tried, but I knew when this date was set a week ago Saturday that Mr. McCarthy wasn't by any means prepared.

(Court talked to Mr. McCarthy on the phone).

THE COURT: Well, I don't know. It's just—you may have a feeling on this thing here, but Mr. McCarthy tells me that the difficulties that you may feel that you have with him over the preparation of this trial involve matters which he thinks are remote and I am sure from what he tells me couldn't be brought into evidence, and it would just be your judgment of what a good trial would be as against his, and I think that you are making quite a mistake here.

MR. PENDERVILLE: I'm not the only one that has this opinion, Your Honor. The opinion is shared by outstanding professional people in the city of Salt Lake.

THE COURT: Whom do you have in mind?

MR. PENDERVILLE: I have in mind for one Doctor Camilla Anderson.

THE COURT: Well, you had better have some lawyer that will tell you because these doctors wouldn't know what they could get in evidence. Your background in the past isn't going to help you. This thing is going to come on what the facts surrounding this thing were. You could have been the best Sunday School boy in the world in the past, and it wouldn't help you.

MR. PENDERVILLE: That I appreciate, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Because you couldn't get it in. It might help you, but you couldn't get it in.

MR. PENDERVILLE: That I appreciate, and I am also cognizant of the fact that my life is at stake in this matter, and I don't believe that Mr. McCarthy is prepared.

THE COURT: Well, he tells me he is.

MR. PENDERVILLE: He did things, Your Honor, last Sunday by long distance telephone that he had every opportunity to do over the past four months. That I have proof of.

THE COURT: Well, I don't know—

MR. PENDERVILLE: I have begged him to do these things.

THE COURT: I don't know how much money he's had.

MR. PENDERVILLE: He's had over fifteen hundred dollars from me, every single penny that I have had coming in every month, and as of now I don't have one red penny with which to employ another attorney, and I won't have until the first

of the month. However, I think I can get over that hurdle.

THE COURT: You are going to be tried before the first of the month. I am going to try this case.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Then I will have to represent myself.

THE COURT: If that is what you want to do, I am not going to permit that. I am going to have you an attorney, and I am going to have Joe McCarthy to represent you because I think he is prepared on this case. He tells me he is, and there isn't any reason in the world—I think you are doing this to stall this case, and I'm not going to let you do it.

Mr. PENDERVILLE: No, I'm not doing it to stall anything.

THE COURT: This case is set for tomorrow, and you write me a letter today. You have had since August 1 to make your mind up on this.

MR. PENDERVILLE: And I have given Mr. McCarthy all this past week ever since December 6 to do the things that he should have done three and four months ago. He hasn't even done those, not up until last night, not even up until six thirty last night he hadn't done them.

THE COURT: Well, now, what is it you claim he hasn't done? He tells me he is ready.

MR. PENDERVILLE: He hasn't investigated to meet any possibility that might arise. He has admitted to me himself that he doesn't know, that he cannot say positively what will be entered in evidence and what will not.

THE COURT: Well, I suppose he wouldn't know that. He can't know what the district attorney is going to do.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir, but he is not prepared because he hasn't investigated angles of this case that even came out at the preliminary.

THE COURT: Well, you had better stay with your attorney that is prepared for you instead of trying to get one that the court would appoint for you because I am going to try this case tomorrow.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Well, I shall—

THE COURT: And if your evidence is not presented there and if you are found guilty, then, of course, you could file some affidavits for newly discovered evidence. I don't believe that Mr. McCarthy has sold you down the river. I think Mr. McCarthy has done you a good job in making this preparation.

MR. PENDERVILLE: I can't help but believe at this time Mr. McCarthy has done anything but speak to me of appeal. He is not going to come in here and tell the court the things about which he spoke to me. He's done nothing but speak of appeal since he first introduced himself into the case. At this point, he's been talking about appeal for the last week or ten days. I have informed him that I am not interested in appeal, that appeal is not the matter at this time. The trial is the matter.

(District Attorney Roberts comes into the Court's chambers).

THE COURT: Mr. Roberts, this gentleman feels that because Mr. McCarthy can't foresee all the evidence that is going to be presented here that he's let him down. I can't help but feel this

is a stall to keep from trying this case tomorrow. Mr. McCarthy tells me he is ready, that he's worked on the case, that he thinks he is in position to present it, that he is willing to represent the gentleman. He doesn't desire to represent a man who doesn't want him to work for him. Do you have any ideas or suggestions here?

MR. ROBERTS: Well, has Mr. Penderville in fact fired, discharged Mr. McCarthy?

THE COURT: Mr. McCarthy didn't know anything about it. He's written me a letter in which he says he has.

MR. PENDERVILLE: I told Mr. McCarthy last night that it was very probable that I would, and he called Doctor Anderson last night and conveyed that information to Doctor Anderson last night. It is particularly evident to support my statement that he has had notice that it probably was coming. I have been attempting to explain my position to Judge Ellett. In my opinion, Mr. McCarthy has had four months. I wanted to go to trial on this thing myself a couple of months ago and get it over with. Mr. McCarthy in the period of the last eight days did attempt by long distance phone calls what he could have done with a three-cent stamp three or four months ago.

THE COURT: Of course, I don't know that that matters to you—

MR. PENDERVILLE: He still doesn't have it.

THE COURT: —how he gets his preparation or whether he determines that a phone call might be better than a stamp. I don't see how that gives you any occasion for alarm.

MR. PENDERVILLE: My point, Your Honor, is that he was informed of these contingencies four months ago.

THE COURT: Informed nothing. He and you were the ones that have been asking for this thing. You stood up in open court and asked me each time that this thing go over. I have been trying to get this to trial for over a month.

MR. PENDERVILLE: I asked that at the behest of my attorney. I didn't know what his plans were, what he was attempting to do. I believe Mr. Roberts is aware of certain developments that came by long distance phone and which I believe the necessary papers have been sent for a deposition. That was information that Mr. McCarthy had four months ago.

THE COURT: The State can't use a deposition on you.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir. I am merely stating that I believe Mr. Roberts is aware of that.

MR. ROBERTS: Joe asked me the other day if I would agree to having some interrogatories sent down to a doctor in San Francisco, and I agreed that I would have no objection and that he could go ahead and do it, and I would not raise any question about it at the trial, and so those were sent down. That is the last I heard of them, and that has been about a week ago.

MR. PENDERVILLE: And he hasn't received them up until last night, but that is one of my points. He was in possession of that information four months ago. I have begged and implored him, cajoled him, everything to try to get this information.

THE COURT: You don't know whether he has those answers or not.

MR. PENDERVILLE: I know he sent them. At least he told me he sent them.

THE COURT: But you don't know whether he has them back or not. He says he is ready.

MR. PENDERVILLE: He told me last night he hadn't received them yet.

THE COURT: Well, do you want me to appoint a lawyer for you?

MR. PENDERVILLE: I think that I can make arrangements, or I should like after this incident—I should certainly like to see three or four attorneys.

THE COURT: I'm not going to do that. I will tell you, because I think you are stalling on me, I will appoint a lawyer if you want to, or you can go ahead with Mr. McCarthy, and it is immaterial to me which you do.

MR. PENDERVILLE: No sir, I shan't go ahead with Mr. McCarthy because I know definitely he is not prepared.

THE COURT: Well, I am going to appoint him for you anyway, and this case is going to trial tomorrow. You will be prepared for it.

MR. PENDERVILLE: Yes sir."

That on the morning of the 17th of December, 1952, Joseph P. McCarthy contacted defendant in the courtroom before court convened and told him that Judge Ellett had appointed him to conduct the defense at the trial of said case, and that if defendant had any objections to proceeding with the trial with Joseph P. McCarthy as affiant's attorney, to make the objections to Judge Ellett in his chambers and not in open court before

the jury panel as the judge did not want the jury prejudiced by any statements made by any of the parties. Thereupon defendant told said attorney that he had made strenuous objections the day before to Judge Ellett against the appointing of said attorney to represent him; that he would prefer to try his own case if he would not let him employ other counsel, and the judge positively refused to let him do so, stating that he was going to appoint said Joseph P. McCarthy notwithstanding that defendant told the court that he would not go ahead with Mr. McCarthy because defendant definitely knew that said attorney was not prepared; that the court thereupon told defendant that he was going to appoint him anyway to defend him and that the case was going to trial the next morning; that said attorney thereupon told him that he could not do anything about it as the court had appointed him to represent him; defendant thereupon asked said attorney what he should do and said attorney told him he had done everything he could do in view of the judge's ruling that the case was going to be tried and that said attorney would have to represent him. That later in the morning and before the court convened, defendant was called into the chambers of Judge Ellett and, in the presence of Mr. Brigham E. Roberts, counsel for the State, Miriam E. Parker, reporter of the court, and the defendant, Edgar Ronald Penderville, and out of the presence of the jury, the following conversation took place:

“THE COURT: Let me ask you gentlemen in this case that is on trial, the State vs. Edgar

Ronald Penderville, is the State ready in that case, Mr. Roberts?

MR. ROBERTS: The State is ready.

THE COURT: And is the defendant ready, Mr. McCarthy?

MR. McCarthy: Yes sir.

THE COURT: Very well. I have your requested questions to be asked on voir dire, and I suppose there are no other preliminary matters here?

MR. McCARTHY: None that I know of."
(R. 64)

A careful analysis of the evidence in this case is necessary to give to the court the basis of many of the assignments of error stated in this brief. Defendant was charged by the information with the crime of murder in the first degree for killing his wife, June Weiler Penderville, on or about July 30, 1952. In the presentation of the facts, we will segregate the direct evidence surrounding the homicide from the maze of medical testimony introduced in the case.

At 5:15 P.M. on the 30th day of July, 1952, Dr. Lyman Condie came to defendant's apartment, No. 2 at 1012 Barbara Place, in answer to defendant's request that he see his wife, June Weiler Penderville, who was suffering from an alcoholic and barbiturate addiction (R. 118). Dr. Condie had previously been treating Mrs. Penderville for chronic alcoholism. He had indicated that Mrs. Penderville would have to be sent to the Salt Lake County Hospital for treatment, and if necessary,

committed to a mental institution (R. 119). The doctor advised Mr. Penderville that if he did not comply with his request, he did not wish to have anything more to do with the case. Mr. and Mrs. Penderville said they would let him know the following morning. Mrs. Penderville at that time was under the influence of intoxicating liquor and pleaded for something to help her sleep. The doctor gave her three one-and-a-half-grain seconal capsules and left one grain-and-a-half seconal capsule with Mr. Penderville to give his wife if further sedation was necessary (R. 119). The doctor explained that he gave this heavy dose of barbiturates for the reason that the excessive use of alcohol creates a high tolerance to barbiturates. At that time Dr. Condie observed that Mrs. Penderville had some old contusions about the eyes, which he called black eyes. They were of old origin. She had a few old contusions about the face, particularly on the cheeks and jaw. They were light purple to yellowish contusions. She was not bleeding from the nose or mouth. There were no marks on her neck that were visible. He left at 6:00 o'clock P.M. (R. 120). Later that evening at approximately 9:45 Dr. Condie received a call from William Christensen, an attorney, to come to the Penderville apartment. He arrived there at approximately 9:55 P.M. He was met at the door by Mr. Penderville who said, "Hurry, I think she has a pulse." Immediately he went to Mrs. Penderville and could obtain no pulse. He listened to her heart and could hear no heart beat and observed no effort at respiration. He thought she was dead at that time (R. 121). He made an examination of

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