1953

# State of Utah v. Edgar Ronald Penderville : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

## POINT I.

THE RIGHTS OF APPELLANT AS GUARANTEED AND PROTECTED BY ARTICLE I, SECTION 12, OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION, AND SECTION 77-1-8, SUBPARAGRAPH 1, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 1953, WERE NEVER VIOLATED NOR WAS DUE PROCESS OF LAW DENIED APPELLANT IN CONTRAVENTION OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

"Strategy may not be resorted to in courts of justice as is the case in war." Thus, this Court has spoken. *Van Cott et al., v. Wall*, 53 Utah 282, 291, 178 P. 2d 42.

The "Transcript of Proceedings" speaks for itself. Defendant was charged with the crime of murder in the first degree on August 1st, 1952, and was not finally arraigned in the District Court until the 6th day of December, 1952. Continuances were had on motion of defend-

ant and defendant was, in fact, continuously represented by counsel from and after August 2nd, 1952. It may not be said that defendant had insufficient time to prepare for trial; nor can it be successfully contended that he was denied the right to defend in person.

In the conduct of a criminal, the same as in a civil jury trial, much ought necessarily be left to the good sense and judgment of the judge. It is his duty to exercise a sound discretion in all matters appertaining to the orderly progress of the trial and during all stages of the proceeding as well, and his action should not be interfered with unless there is a clear abuse of discretion.

Defendant now contends that he was denied the right to represent himself. The primary question is, therefore, did he want to do just that. We think not. In the reported transcript of the discussion had between Judge Ellett and the defendant on the day preceding the trial, defendant said:

“\* \* \* and as of now, I don’t have one red penny with which to employ another attorney, and I won’t have until the first of the month. However I think I can get over that hurdle” (R. 321). \* \* \*

Then:

“The Court: Well, do you want me to appoint a lawyer for you?

“Mr. Penderville: I think I can make arrangements, or I should like after this incident—I should certainly like to see three or four attorneys.

“The Court: I’m not going to do that. I will tell you, because I think you are stalling on me, I

will appoint a lawyer if you want to, or you can go ahead with Mr. McCarthy, and it is immaterial to me which you do" (R. 325).

True, the record thereafter shows that defendant said he did not want Mr. McCarthy and it shows also that the court proceeded to appoint him regardless of that fact. However, the truth is that defendant did not seek to defend himself in person and it is apparent from all of the discussion had that the court understood correctly that what defendant actually desired was a further continuance. The court's ruling was correct; see *United States v. Maurice Alvin Gutterman*, 147 F. 2d 540, 157 A. L. R. 1221, (1945); Annotated 1225. That court, confronted with a similar if not identical problem, there said:

"As for the claim that the court unlawfully declined to dismiss the attorney who had been assigned to defend him and was not shown to be unfaithful or incompetent, it is in substance the same as the contention that we held to be unfounded in *United States v. Mitchell* (2 Cir.) 147 F. (2d) 1006, and *Id.* (2 Cir.) 138 F. (2d) 831.

"There we had to deal with a defendant's contention that he was seeking to discharge his attorney merely in order to exercise his right to conduct his own defense, just as we have to do here. In neither case did it appear that the defendant was really seeking to take over the personal conduct of his defense or that he was doing more than to claim the privilege of changing his counsel because he did not approve of the latter's judgment. To yield to such a request where the defendant has not made it clear that he really wished to conduct the defense in propria persona gives far too great a chance to delay trials and otherwise embarrass effective prosecution of crime."

In their brief, counsel for appellant say:

“As far as the record is concerned defendant had never been involved in a felony prosecution. This was an entirely new experience for him. Can there be any greater prejudice shown than forcing a defendant to trial with an attorney in whom he has no confidence?”

We wonder if forcing him to defend himself, he being so unskilled in such matters and totally unlearned in the law, would not have prejudiced his cause much more? We think that the court was acting within its sound discretion and that the record reveals a solicitude on the part of the court for the cause of appellant's defense.

Where a solicitous trial judge advised a defendant thusly:

“I think, as a matter of advice to the defendant and for the protection of his rights, that this case involves and will involve expert testimony; matters that require more or less technical knowledge; also technical knowledge on the part of counsel as to the character of evidence, propounding of questions put to expert witnesses; that requires a technical knowledge as to the manner of presenting such testimony in court; that no person who is not familiar and understands the propounding of those questions and examining the experts is fully competent to represent the defendant, unless it is handled by counsel who are familiar with that class of testimony to some extent at least. Another thing that I want to call to the defendant's attention is that if he has counsel he has the privilege to request his counsel to ask any question that he may desire him to ask of any witness in the case, by communicating that question to his counsel and his counsel putting the

question to the witness, and if the question is a proper one or one that is relevant to the issues in the case, I believe that his counsel would and should present the question to the witness and he would obtain all the results that he would obtain by putting the question directly to the witness himself in person."

Thereafter, and despite such advice, the defendant therein elected to personally conduct his own defense; on appeal it was contended that the court's attitude and ruling on the matter deprived the appellant of a constitutional right to appear and defend in person and with counsel. The appellate court found such contention to be without merit. *People v. Northcott*, (Cal. 1930) 289 P. 634. In that case the defendant intended to, elected to, and did conduct his own case and the matter as to the right to a continuance was not an issue.

The question of whether a continuance should be granted or not rests within the discretion of the trial court and will ordinarily not be reviewed:

*State v. Freshwater*, 30 Utah 442, 85 Pac. 447.

*State v. Anselmo*, 46 Utah 137, 148 Pac. 1071.

*State v. Cano*, 64 Utah 87, 228 Pac. 563.

*State v. Fairclough*, 86 Utah 326, 44 P. 2d 692.

*State v. Williams*, 49 Utah 320, 163 Pac. 1104.

*State v. Hartman*, 101 Utah 298, 119 P. 2d 112.

And, the refusal of a continuance will not be deemed error unless there has been a plain abuse of discretion:

*State v. Haworth*, 24 Utah 398, 68 Pac. 165.

*State v. Vacos*, 40 Utah 169, 120 Pac. 497.

*State v. Riley*, 41 Utah 225, 126 Pac. 294.

*State v. Cano*, *supra*.

*State v. Fairclough*, *supra*.

*State v. Green*, 89 Utah 437, 57 P. 2d 750.

See generally Decennial Digests, Criminal Law,  
Key No. 586 and Key No. 1151.

In the case of *State v. Cano*, *supra*, the time between the preliminary hearing and the trial was only a little more than thirty days; in the instant case, the offense charged was committed on the 30th day of July; the defendant was arraigned on August 2nd; thereafter successive continuances were upon defendant's motion granted to August 7th, September 18th, and finally October 28th, in the year 1952. Finally on the 17th day of December, 1952, the trial commenced. The court said, in the *Cano* case, *supra*, that it would be a travesty of justice to reverse a judgment merely because one charged with a grave offense was speedily tried, and upon such trial convicted. Defendant here complains of the "lower court's opinion" that defendant was taking too long to prepare his defense. Section 77-24-18, U. C. A. 1953, provides:

"After his plea, the defendant shall be entitled to at least two days to prepare for trial, but the time of the trial shall not be postponed for a longer time than the court may deem imperative."

## POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING ANY ONE OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS MADE BY DEFENDANT:

- (a) Motion to Dismiss the Action at the Close of the State's Case and Renewed at the Close of Defendant's Case (R. 200, 309).

- (b) Motion to Dismiss the Charge of First Degree Murder at the Close of the State's Case and Renewed at the Close of Defendant's Case (R. 200, 309).
- (c) Motion to Reduce the Charge to Voluntary Manslaughter Made at the Close of the State's Case (R. 202).
- (d) The Verdict is Contrary to the Law and the Evidence, as Raised in Defendant's Motion for New Trial (R. 50-66).

Counsel for appellant says :

"We direct the following argument to all of the foregoing motions. There is not a scintilla of evidence which directly or indirectly justifies the conclusion that defendant was the perpetrator of the injuries sustained by the deceased on the 30th day of July, 1952."

We submit that there was much more than a "scintilla" of evidence both direct and indirect which fully justified the jury (*triers of the fact*) to unanimously find that the defendant inflicted the injuries causing death. We contend further that these injuries could not have been self inflicted; this contention is irrevocably sustained by the expert medical testimony adduced during the trial. We direct the Court to the testimony of Adolph M. Neilsen, M. D., "*the injuries he observed on the neck; eyes, head and skull could not have been self inflicted*" (R. 93-94) ; Lyman W. Condie, M. D., "*the injuries and contusions he observed on the body of Mrs. Penderville at and after 9:15 p. m. on July 30th,*

*were not self inflicted*" (R. 130) ; there is no evidence the injuries *were* self inflicted, *or could have been* self inflicted, nor do the exhibits so indicate. Counsel interposes, and contends, through some twenty pages of their brief, their own theories on *how* the injuries *could* have been inflicted and some of their theories are indeed not lacking in ingenuity. We think this argumentative approach would be proper for presentation to the jury but that it has little, if any, value or merit at this stage of the proceedings. It would not be material for the respondent here to advance a theory independent of the record. We are certain that this Court will draw its conclusions from the contents of the record.

To the motions and their merit. The motions complained of were made and disposed of as follows:

Record, page 200-202

"Mr. McCarthy: Comes now the defendant and moves the court to dismiss the charge of first degree murder for the reason that the prosecution has failed to establish a *prima facie* case, in that there is no showing of a criminal connection between the defendant and the charge, nor is there proof of the *corpus delicti*. The evidence is inadequate to fix the cause of death. There is no connection showing that the defendant did the act.

"The Court: Well, I think there is a jury question here. The defendant was with the deceased so far as the evidence goes—I think the jury now could say he was with her all the time, and the evidence of the doctors is that she died, received her death as a result of some trauma to the head, and I believe that the jury could find that this defendant was the cause of her death.

"Mr. McCarthy: Your Honor, I see nothing in the testimony that would rule out the possibility of an accidental death, nor is there anything to directly connect the defendant with the place in which the charged crime took place except negative testimony that no one saw him elsewhere, which does not place the defendant on the scene at the time the crime is charged to have been committed.

"The Court: He's with her at the last anyone saw her, and the first anyone saw her thereafter he was with her. I think there is a jury question involved. The motion will be denied.

"Mr. McCarthy: Now, Your Honor, I move to dismiss the allegation of first degree murder and ask that the charge on the present evidence be reduced to second degree murder because there is no showing of premeditation, plan, design, or anything else.

"The Court: Do you want to be heard on that?

"Mr. Roberts: Yes. I think there is, Your Honor, I think the testimony indicates that this woman was beaten and battered in the head. Numerous blows would have had to have caused the condition which appears on her scalp, on her eyes, and the rest of her head and on the neck, and certainly such a beating—evidence of such a beating would indicate that the person who did it was intending to cause the death.

"The Court: Let me ask, Mr. Roberts—you don't need to take this.

"(Discussion)

"The Court: The motion at this time will be denied. You may have the right to renew it upon the completion of the evidence if you desire.

"Mr. McCarthy: I would like to go one further and move that the charge be reduced to voluntary

manslaughter because there is a failure to show intent to kill.

"The Court: That motion, of course, would have been taken care of—

"Mr. McCarthy: On the denial.

"The Court: Of the first one, yes, and it is denied."

Record, page 309

"The Court: We are out of the presence of the jury and in the presence of the defendant and counsel. You may make such motions as you desire, Mr. McCarthy.

"Mr. McCarthy: Thank you, sir. Comes now the defendant and moves the court to dismiss the entire charge for failure of the State to prove the case.

"The Court: That motion will be denied.

"Mr. McCarthy: Comes now the defendant and moves the court to dismiss the charge of first degree murder for the reason that no premeditation has been proved.

"The Court: I want to hear you on that. How are you going to defend that?

"(Argument by Mr. Roberts)

"The Court: I will deny your motion and let him argue it and see if they believe it." \* \* \*

A motion to dismiss the charge "is properly denied as where, according to various statements of the rule, the evidence is sufficient to authorize conviction; where there is substantial evidence to support a conviction, even though

a conviction based thereon would be regarded as flagrantly against the evidence; where there is any legal evidence, however slight or weak and inconclusive, tending reasonably to show, or affording an inference of, guilt, or from which the jury can legitimately deduce either of two conclusions; where the evidence of a material nature is conflicting, or presents a case for the jury, or is such that reasonable minds might differ as to accused's guilt; where the evidence tends to show the commission of the offense charged and the connection of accused therewith, \* \* \* or is sufficient to overcome prima facie the presumption of innocence, and to require accused to produce evidence in his own behalf, or is such that, if believed by the jury, it would support an inference or finding of guilt." 23 C. J. S., Criminal Law, Section 1145 (3), page 665, et. seq., and cases there cited.

Commencing now with page 52 of Brief of Appellant, and with the above rules in mind, permit us to analyze (as we read them) the allegation, contention and conclusion of counsel for defendant as to what the record shows. Dr. Condie was with the defendant and the now deceased at their apartment between the approximate hours of 5:15 and 6:00 o'clock p. m. on the 30th day of July, 1952; he consulted with them both and examined (at least by observation) and administered to Mrs. Penderville (R. 118, 119, 120); the dose of seconal which he gave her would put an average individual to sleep without question (R. 120). When the doctor saw Mrs. Penderville next, at approximately 9:55 p. m. on the same date, she was dead (R. 121). He had been re-called to the apartment by an at-

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